Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. Form 10-Q November 10, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549	

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

X

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008

or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) of the SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from to

Commission File No. 001-32919

Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

20-3672603 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

8120 Shaffer Parkway

Littleton, CO 80127

(Address of principal executive offices)

303-285-9885

(Registrant s telephone number including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O

Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer o
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)

Yes o No x

At November 5, 2008, 20,938,049 shares of the registrant s Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, were outstanding.

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2008

Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

<u>Item 1.</u>	Financial Statements	3
	Condensed Balance Sheets As of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007	3
	Condensed Statements of Operations For the three and nine months ended	
	September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and for the period from inception	
	(October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008	4
	Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity For the period from inception	_
	(October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008	5
	Condensed Statements of Cash Flows For the nine months ended September 30, 2008	
	and September 30, 2007 and for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through	_
	<u>September 30, 2008</u>	7
	Notes to Condensed Financial Statements	8
Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of	
<u>1tem 2.</u>	Operations	19
	<u>Operations</u>	19
<u>Item 3.</u>	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	29
<u>Item 4T.</u>	Controls and Procedures	29
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION		
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION		
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of proceeds	29
<u>Item 4.</u>	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	30
-	77.4.11.1	
<u>Item 6.</u>	<u>Exhibits</u>	31
SIGNATURES		34
SIGNATURES		54
	2	

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Financial Statements

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company as Defined by SFAS No. 7)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

	September 30, 2008 (Unaudited)			December 31, 2007
ASSETS		· ´		
Current Assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	52,638,245	\$	580,746
Restricted cash		2,300,000		
Investments		39,032,495		37,120,000
Accounts receivable contracts		208,737		204,351
Other current assets		736,854		349,062
Total current assets		94,916,331		38,254,159
Property and Equipment at Cost:		22,515,834		1,766,294
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization		(1,106,017)		(115,051)
		21,409,817		1,651,243
Other Assets				
Investments non-current		4,584,220		
Deposits on manufacturing equipment		23,643,499		9,720,309
Patents, net of amortization of \$5,116 and \$0, respectively		124,222		91,215
Other non-current assets		72,500		100,000
		28,424,441		9,911,524
Total Assets	\$	144,750,589	\$	49,816,926
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY				
Current Liabilities:				
Accounts payable	\$	286,693	\$	257,529
Related party payables		335,228		264,797
Accrued liabilities		10,489,871		652,524
Current portion of long-term debt		111,656		
Forward contract liabilities		722,715		
Total current liabilities		11,946,163		1,174,850
Deferred Rent		14,014		20,021
Long-Term Debt		5,861,713		
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 5 & 11)				
Stockholders Equity:				

Preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding

* *************************************		
Common stock, \$0.0001 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized;		
18,495,448 and 11,435,901 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2008		
and December 31, 2007, respectively	1,850	1,144
Additional paid in capital	148,835,201	60,512,476
Deficit accumulated during the development stage	(21,735,440)	(11,891,565)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(172,912)	
Total stockholders equity	126,928,699	48,622,055
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity	\$ 144,750,589 \$	49,816,926

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company as Defined by SFAS No. 7)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

			the Three Months ded September 30, 2007			For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 2007			For the Period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008		
Research and Development Revenues											
Contract revenues	\$	422,487	\$	324,064	\$	1,071,500	\$	739,732	\$	2,046,655	
Related party revenues								27,519		27,519	
Total Revenues		422,487		324,064		1,071,500		767,251		2,074,174	
Costs and Expenses											
Research and development		2,609,926		1,100,328		6,522,587		2,749,727		11,188,630	
General and administrative		2,284,839		1,807,773		4,889,824		3,842,993		13,732,568	
Total Costs and Expenses		4,894,765		2,908,101		11,412,411		6,592,720		24,921,198	
-											
Loss from Operations	\$	(4,472,278)	\$	(2,584,037)	\$	(10,340,911)	\$	(5,825,469)	\$	(22,847,024)	
Od I //E)											
Other Income/(Expense)		(020)		(270)		(100,002)		(406)		(1.102.740)	
Interest expense		(938)		(270)		(109,893)		(406)		(1,193,748)	
Interest income		687,801		518,909		1,587,404		925,460		3,285,807	
Realized loss on forward contract		(257,760)				(257,760)				(257,760)	
Unrealized loss on forward		/=== = ·				/=aa =4 =>				(========	
contracts		(722,715)				(722,715)				(722,715)	
		(293,612)		518,639		497,036		925,054		1,111,584	
Net Loss	\$	(4,765,890)	\$	(2,065,398)	¢	(9,843,875)	\$	(4,900,415)	¢	(21,735,440)	
Net Loss	Ψ	(4,703,690)	Ψ	(2,003,390)	Ψ	(2,043,073)	Ψ	(4,900,413)	Ψ	(21,733,440)	
Net Loss Per Share	\$	(0.26)	\$	(0.19)	\$	(0.63)	\$	(0.61)			
(Basic and diluted)											
Weighted Average Common											
Shares Outstanding											
(Basic and diluted)		18,461,158		10,609,460		15,536,689		8,017,084			

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company as Defined by SFAS No. 7)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND (LOSS)

For the Period from inception (October 18, 2005) through December 31, 2007 (Audited) and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 (Unaudited)

							Additional		Accum Otl		Total
	Commor	Sto	ck	Preferre	ed Stock		Paid-In	Accumulated			
	Shares	A	mount	Shares	Amoun	t	Capital	Deficit	Lo	oss	Equity
Balance at inception, October 18, 2005							•				
Proceeds from sale of common stock (11/05 @											
\$.04 per share)	972,000	\$	97		\$	\$	38,783	\$	\$	\$	38,880
Stock based compensation:											
Founders stock							933,120				933,120
Stock options							26,004				26,004
Net loss								(1,207,2	34)		(1,207,234)
Balance, December 31, 2005	972,000	\$	97		\$	\$	997,907	\$ (1,207,2	34) \$	\$	(209,230)
Transfer of assets at historical cost (1/06 @ \$0.03											
per share)	1,028,000		103				31,097				31,200
Proceeds from IPO (7/06 @ \$5.50 per unit)	3,000,000		300				16,499,700				16,500,000
IPO costs							(2,392,071)				(2,392,071)
Stock issued to bridge loan lenders (7/06 @ \$2.75											
per share)	290,894		29				799,971				800,000
Exercise of stock options (9/06 & 12/06 @ \$0.10											
per share)	31,200		3				3,117				3,120
Stock based compensation stock options							348,943				348,943
Net loss								(4,180,9	12)		(4,180,912)
Balance, December 31, 2006	5,322,094	\$	532		\$	\$	16,288,664	\$ (5,388,14	46) \$	\$	10,901,050
Exercise of stock options (1/07-12/07@ \$.10)											
(7/07-12/07@ \$4.25) (9/07-12/07@ \$2.51-\$2.76)	169,963		17				346,417				346,434
Conversion of Class A public warrants at \$6.60	3,098,382		310				20,449,011				20,449,321
Redemption of Class A public warrants at \$0.25											
per share							(48,128)				(48,128)
Conversion of Class B public warrants at \$11.00											
per share	11,000		1				120,999				121,000
Stock based compensation stock options							1,734,879				1,734,879
Proceeds from private placement:											
Common stock (3/07 @ \$5.77 and 8/07 @											
\$7.198)	2,534,462		254				15,962,003				15,962,257
Class B public warrants (8/07 @ \$1.91)							3,754,468				3,754,468
Private placement costs							(75,807)				(75,807)
Exercise of representative s warrants (9/07-11/07											
@ \$6.60 per unit)	300,000		30				1,979,970				1,980,000
Net loss								(6,503,4			(6,503,419)
Balance, December 31, 2007	11,435,901	\$	1,144		\$	\$	60,512,476	\$ (11,891,50	55) \$	\$	48,622,055

Table of Contents

	Commo	n Stock	Preferred Stock		dditional Paid-In	Accumulated	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Total Stockholders
	Shares	Amount	Shares Amor	_	Capital	Deficit	Loss	Equity
Balance, December 31, 2007	11,435,901	\$ 1,144	\$	\$	60,512,476			\$ 48,622,055
Exercise of stock options		•				, , ,	,	
(1/08-9/08 @ \$0.10, \$2.73,								
\$2.90 & \$4.25)	109,004	11			118,109			118,120
Issuance of Restricted Stock	64,846	7			(7)			
Conversion of Class B public								
warrants at \$11.00 per share	98,800	9			1,086,791			1,086,800
Stock based compensation					1,284,226			1,284,226
Proceeds from private								
placement:								
Common stock (3/08 @								
\$9.262)	2,341,897	234			21,690,416			21,690,650
Class B public warrants (3/08 @ \$3.954)					6,681,884			6,681,884
Exercise of representative s								
warrants (1/08 @ \$6.60 per								
unit)	75,000	8			494,992			495,000
Proceeds from shareholder								
under Section 16(b)					148,109			148,109
Proceeds from secondary								
public offering (5/08 @								
\$14.00)	4,370,000	437			61,179,563			61,180,000
Costs of secondary public								
offering					(4,361,358)			(4,361,358)
Components of comprehensive loss								
Net loss						(9,843,875)	(9,843,875)
Unrealized loss on investments							(172,912)	(172,912)
Total comprehensive loss						(9,843,875	(172,912)	<u>(</u> 10,016,787)
Balance, September 30, 2008	18,495,448	\$ 1,850	\$	\$	148,835,201	\$ (21,735,440) \$ (172,912)	\$ 126,928,699

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company as Defined by SFAS No. 7)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

	For the Nine N Septem	For the Period from inception (October 18, 2005) through	
	2008	2007	September 30, 2008
Operating Activities:			
Net loss	\$ (9,843,875)	\$ (4,900,415)	\$ (21,735,440)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization	997,303	44,540	1,113,633
Stock based compensation	1,284,226	1,633,361	4,327,172
Realized loss on forward contract	257,760		257,760
Unrealized loss on forward contracts	722,715		722,715
Charge off of deferred financing costs to interest expense			198,565
Charge off of bridge loan discount to interest expense			800,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	(4,386)	(164,819)	(208,737)
Other current assets	(387,792)	(214,564)	(736,854)
Accounts payable	29,164	449,203	286,693
Related party payable	70,431	18,766	335,228
Deferred rent	(6,007)	7,582	14,014
Accrued liabilities	765,541	206,428	1,418,065
Net cash used in operating activities	(6,114,920)	(2,919,918)	(13,207,186)
Investing Activities:			
Purchases of available-for-sale-securities	(273,068,887)	(84,822,394)	(416,429,681)
Maturities and sales of available for-sale securities	266,399,259	54,162,171	372,640,053
Purchase of property and equipment	(10,682,200)	(1,531,805)	(20,112,213)
Deposits on manufacturing equipment	(15,076,483)	(4,606,716)	(17,226,828)
Restricted cash for manufacturing equipment	(2,300,000)	(465,000)	(2,300,000)
Patent activity costs	(36,844)	(27,497)	(104,381)
Net cash used in investing activities	(34,765,155)	(37,291,241)	(83,533,050)
Financing Activities:			
Proceeds from bridge loan financing			1,600,000
Repayment of bridge loan financing			(1,600,000)
Payment of debt financing costs	(75,000)		(273,565)
Payment of equity offering costs	(4,361,358)	(75,807)	(6,829,237)
Proceeds from debt	5,973,369		6,173,369
Repayment of debt			(200,000)
Proceeds from shareholder under Section 16(b)	148,109		148,109
Proceeds from issuance of stock and warrants	91,252,454	41,095,092	150,407,933
Redemption of Class A warrants		(48,128)	(48,128)
Net cash provided by financing activities	92,937,574	40,971,157	149,378,481
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	52,057,499	759,998	52,638,245

Edgar Filing: Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	580,746	786,357	
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 52,638,245	\$ 1,546,355	\$ 52,638,245
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:			
Cash paid for interest	\$ 165,256	\$ 406	\$ 250,499
Cash paid for income taxes	\$	\$	\$
Non-Cash Transactions:			
ITN initial contribution of assets for equity	\$	\$	\$ 31,200

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(A Development Stage Company as Defined by SFAS No. 7)

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION

Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. (Ascent or the Company) was incorporated on October 18, 2005 from the separation by ITN Energy, Inc. (ITN) of its Advanced Photovoltaic Division and all of that division s key personnel and core technologies. ITN, a private company incorporated in 1994, is an incubator dedicated to the development of thin-film, photovoltaic (PV) battery, fuel cell and nano technologies. Through its work on research and development contracts for private and governmental entities, ITN developed proprietary processing and manufacturing know-how applicable to PV products generally, and to Copper-Indium-Gallium-diSelenide (CIGS) PV products in particular. ITN formed Ascent to commercialize its investment in CIGS PV technologies. In January 2006, in exchange for 1,028,000 shares of common stock of Ascent, ITN assigned to Ascent all ITN s CIGS PV technologies and trade secrets and granted to Ascent a perpetual, exclusive, royalty-free worldwide license to use ITN s proprietary process, control and design technologies in the production of CIGS PV modules. Upon receipt of the necessary government approvals in January 2007, ITN assigned government-funded research and development contracts to Ascent and also transferred the key personnel working on the contracts to Ascent. Today, ITN still provides Ascent, at cost, a variety of administrative and technical services such as facilities management, equipment maintenance, procurement, information technology and technical support services.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation: The Company s activities to date have substantially consisted of raising capital, research and development, and the development of a 1.5 MW production plant and additional 30 MW expansion. Revenues to date have been generated from the Company s government research and development (R&D) contracts and have not been significant. The Company s planned principal operations to commercialize flexible PV modules has not yet commenced. Accordingly, the Company is considered to be in the development stage, as defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7 (SFAS No. 7), Accounting and Reporting by Development Stage Enterprises.

The accompanying unaudited financial statements, consisting of the Condensed Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2008, the Condensed Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008, the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 and the Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008, have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, these condensed financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes typically found in the audited financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

The Condensed Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007 and the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through December 31, 2007 have been derived from the audited financial statements as of that date but do not include all of the information and footnotes included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. For further information, refer to the financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2008.

Unaudited Information: The accompanying interim financial information as of September 30, 2008 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 was taken from the Company s books and records without audit. However, in the opinion of management, such information includes all adjustments (consisting only of results of normal recurring accruals) that are necessary to properly reflect the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 so that the financial statements are not misleading.

Investments: The Company accounts for investments in accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Securities held by the Company as of September 30, 2008 are classified as available-for-sale and consisted of U.S. government securities, corporate securities, and municipal bonds. Such investments are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices with the unrealized holding gains and losses reported as Accumulated other comprehensive income in the stockholders—equity section of the balance sheet. Realized gains and losses on sales of securities are computed using the specific identification method. The Company evaluates declines in market value for potential impairment. If the decline results in a value below cost and is determined to be other than temporary, the investment is written down to its impaired value and a new cost basis is established. A summary of available-for-sale securities as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

	Aı	nortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	1	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
U.S. government securities	\$	29,545,910	\$	\$	(46,179) \$	29,499,731
Corporate securities		8,703,089			(126,105)	8,576,984
Municipal bonds		5,540,628			(628)	5,540,000
Total	\$	43,789,627	\$	\$	(172,912) \$	43,616,715

Contractual maturities of our available-for-sale investments as of September 30, 2008 were as follows:

	An	nortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
One year or less	\$	39,200,934	\$	\$ (168,439) \$	39,032,495
One year to two years		4,588,693		(4,473)	4,584,220
Total	\$	43,789,627	\$	\$ (172,912) \$	43,616,715

We typically invest in highly-rated securities with low probabilities of default. Our investment policy specifies minimum investment grade criteria, types of acceptable investments, concentration limitations and duration.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid debt securities purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances which may exceed federally insured

limits. The Company does not believe that this results in any significant credit risk.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue to date is from government research and development contracts under terms that are cost plus fee or firm fixed price. Revenue from cost plus fee contracts is recognized as costs are incurred on the basis of direct costs plus allowable indirect costs and an allocable portion of the firm fixed fee. Revenue from firm fixed price contracts is recognized under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, with costs and estimated profits included in contract revenue as work is performed. If actual and estimated costs to complete a contract indicate a loss, provision is made currently for the loss anticipated on the contract.

Patents: At such time as the Company is awarded patents, patent costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the legal life, or over their estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had \$124,222 of net patent costs of which \$30,696 represent costs net of amortization incurred for an awarded patent, and the remaining \$93,526 represents costs incurred for patents filed for. Amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$5,116 and \$0, respectively.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at the original cost to the Company. Assets are being depreciated over estimated useful lives of one to ten years using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remainder of the lease term or the life of the improvements. Upon retirement or disposal,

Table of Contents

the cost of the asset disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Risks and Uncertainties: The Company s operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including those associated with: the ability to meet obligations; continuing losses; fluctuation in operating results; funding expansions; strategic alliances; financing arrangement terms that may restrict operations; regulatory issues; and competition. Additionally, U.S. government contracts may be terminated prior to completion of full funding by the U.S. government.

Net loss per Common Share: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, *Earnings Per Share*, provides for the calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share include no dilution and are computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential of securities that could share in the earnings of the Company, similar to fully diluted earnings per share. Common stock equivalents consisting of Class B warrants, IPO warrants (representative warrants), and stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2008 of approximately 11.6 million shares, have been omitted from loss per share because they are anti-dilutive. Basic and diluted loss per share was the same in each of the periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007.

Research and Development Costs: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Incomes Taxes: In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN 48), *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes*. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Deferred income taxes are provided using the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates as of the date of enactment.

As defined, FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. The Company became subject to the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company has identified its federal tax return and its Colorado tax return as major tax jurisdictions, as defined. The periods subject to examination for the Company s federal and state tax returns are tax years 2005 through 2007. The Company believes that its income tax filing positions and deductions will be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded pursuant to FIN 48. In addition, the Company did not record a cumulative effect adjustment related to the adoption of FIN 48.

Stock Based Compensation: The Company accounts for share-based payments under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment*, (SFAS 123(R)) which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees, officers, directors, and consultants, including employee stock options based on estimated fair values.

SFAS 123(R) requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service period in the Company s Statements of Operations. Stock based compensation is based on awards ultimately expected to vest and is reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, as necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

For purposes of determining estimated fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant under SFAS 123(R), the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (Black-Scholes Model). The Black-Scholes Model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company s employee stock options may have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management s opinion, the existing models may not provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company s employee stock options. Management will continue to assess the assumptions and methodologies used to calculate estimated fair value of share-based compensation. Circumstances may change and additional data may become available over time, which result in changes to these assumptions and methodologies, which could materially impact the Company s fair value determination.

The guidance in SFAS 123(R) is relatively new, and best practices are not well established. The application of these principles may be subject to further interpretation and refinement over time. There are significant differences among option valuation models, and this may result in a lack of comparability with other companies that use different models, methods and assumptions. If factors change and the Company employs different assumptions in the application of SFAS 123(R) in future periods, or if the Company decides to use a different valuation model, the compensation expense that the Company records in the future under SFAS 123(R) may differ significantly from what it has recorded in the current period and could materially affect its loss from operations, net loss and net loss per share.

Comprehensive income (loss). Our comprehensive income (loss) consists of our net income (loss), and changes in unrealized gains or losses on investments, the impact of which has been excluded from net loss. We present our comprehensive income (loss) in the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income and (Loss). Our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is presented as a component of equity in our Condensed Balance Sheets and consists of the cumulative amount of unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale investments that we have incurred since the inception of our business.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 financial statements to conform to the 2008 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net loss.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157). In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which provides a one year deferral of the effective date of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value at least annually. Therefore, the Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 with respect to its financial assets and liabilities only. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined under SFAS 157 as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under SFAS 157 must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value which are the following:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

In accordance with SFAS 157, the following table represents the Company s fair value hierarchy for its financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2008:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial Assets:				
U.S. government securities	\$ 27,946,450	\$ 25,657,377	\$	\$ 53,603,827
Money market funds	16,820,210			16,820,210
Corporate securities		20,038,884		20,038,884
Municipal bonds		5,540,000		5,540,000
	\$ 44,766,660	\$ 51,236,261	\$	\$ 96,002,921
Financial Liabilities:				
Derivative liability	\$	\$ 722,715	\$	\$ 722,715
	11			

Table of Contents

The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 159 *The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities* (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 allows an entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement for specified financial assets and liabilities on a contract-by-contract basis. The Company did not elect to adopt the fair value option under this Statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (SFAS 160), which will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be re-characterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation method will significantly change the accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS 160 is effective as of the beginning of an entity s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 160 on its financial position and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 (SFAS 161), which expands the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 161 specifically requires entities to provide enhanced disclosures addressing the following: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations; and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 161 on its financial position, results of operations and disclosures.

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTRACTS

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company completed the novation, or transfer, of approximately \$3.5 million in government funded research and development contracts (R&D contracts) from ITN to the Company. The various contracts are being performed for U.S. government customers that include the Air Force Research Laboratory and the National Aeronautics and Space Administration. In addition to approximately \$1.6 million of future revenues to be provided under the transferred contracts, the key scientists, engineers, and process technicians responsible for deliverables under the transferred contracts were also transferred from ITN to become full-time Ascent employees. In 2007 and 2008, additional R&D contracts were awarded to the Company of approximately \$3.4 million.

Accounts receivable consists mainly of billed and unbilled amounts under these R&D contracts. Management deems all accounts receivable to be collectible.

The components of accounts receivable as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 are:

	Septem	ber 30, 2008	December 31, 2007
Billed receivables	\$	163,441	\$ 176,168

Unbilled receivables	45,296	28,183
Total	\$ 208,737 \$	204,351

Unbilled receivables represent costs incurred but not yet billed, including retainage amounts by the government on contracts that have not been closed out at the end of the period.

Provisional Indirect Cost Rates During 2007 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company billed the government under cost-based R&D contracts at provisional billing rates which permit the recovery of indirect costs. These rates are subject to audit on an annual basis by the government agencies cognizant audit agency. The cost audit will result in the negotiation and determination of the final indirect cost rates. The Company has not been audited and has not received final rate determinations for the year ended December 31, 2007 or the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The final rates, if different from the actual, may create an additional receivable or liability. In the opinion of management, re-determination of any cost-based contracts will not have a material effect on the Company s financial position or results of operations.

Contract Status The Company has authorized but not completed contracts on which work is in process at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 as follows:

	Sep	otember 30, 2008	December 31, 2007
Total contract price of initial contract awards,			
including exercised options and			
approved change orders (modifications)	\$	6,889,991	\$ 5,228,023
Completed to date(1)		(3,876,143)	(2,828,453)
Authorized backlog	\$	3,013,848	\$ 2,399,570

(1) Includes work performed by ITN prior to January 1, 2007.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

	September 30, 2008	December 31, 2007
Computer Equipment	\$ 184,944	\$ 147,943
Furniture and Fixtures	34,099	2,027
R&D Equipment	222,037	150,993
Shop/Facility Equipment	79,986	12,253
Leasehold Improvements	738,915	724,907
Manufacturing Equipment	11,480,755	728,171
Real Property	5,431,052	
Construction in Process	4,344,046	
	22,515,834	1,766,294
Less: Accumulated depreciation and		
amortization	(1,106,017)	(115,051)
Property and equipment, net	\$ 21,409,817	\$ 1,651,243

Depreciation and amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$990,966 and \$44,540, respectively.

We incurred and capitalized interest costs related to our construction loan for our facility expansion into our property and equipment as follows during the nine months ended September 30, 2008:

	Septem	September 30, 2008			
Interest cost incurred	\$	199,875			
Interest cost capitalized		(89,982)			
Interest expense, net	\$	109,893			

NOTE 5. DEPOSITS ON MANUFACTURING EQUIPMENT

As of October 31, 2008, the Company had entered into purchase agreements of approximately \$77 million for the acquisition of manufacturing production tools and approximately \$6 million for one meter wide manufacturing development tools for the Company s planned expansion to approximately 30 MW of rated capacity and planned future implementation of one meter wide substrates. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had made progress payments of approximately \$17.4 million on these purchase agreements which are reflected on the Condensed Balance Sheet as Deposits on manufacturing equipment. Generally, these purchase agreements have milestone-based deliverables, such as the Company s acceptance of design requirements and successful installation and commissioning of the equipment. Approximately \$25.6 million of the purchase agreements entered into are denominated in foreign currencies and approximately \$12.5 million has been hedged through the establishment of forward pricing contracts with a bank.

NOTE 6. DEBT

In January 2006, the Company completed a \$1.6 million bridge loan (Bridge Financing) from lenders (Bridge Noteholders) to help meet the Company s working capital needs. The loans (Bridge Loans) accrued interest at an annual rate of 10% and were due and payable on the earlier of January 2007 or the completion of Ascent s public offering of equity

13

Table of Contents

securities with gross proceeds of at least \$5,000,000 (Qualified Public Offering). In July 2006, with the proceeds from a Qualified Public Offering (*i.e.*, the Company s initial public offering or IPO), the Company repaid the Bridge Loans including accrued interest.

In connection with the Bridge Loans, the Company issued rights (Bridge Rights) to the Bridge Noteholders. One Bridge Right was issued for every \$25,000 loaned. In July 2006, upon completion of the IPO, the holders of Bridge Rights received restricted units. The holder of each Bridge Right received that number of units equal to \$25,000 divided by the IPO price of the units of \$5.50 for a total of 290,894 units. The units are identical to those offered in Ascent s IPO and consisted of one share of common stock, one redeemable Class A public warrant and two non-redeemable Class B warrants. In September 2006, the SEC declared effective the Company s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Reg. No. 333-137008) for the shares and warrants underlying the 290,894 units issued in connection with the Bridge Rights. The Registration Statement on Form SB-2 subsequently was converted to a Registration Statement on Form S-3.

Paulson Investment Company, Inc. acted as the placement agent for the Bridge Financing. The Company paid Paulson Investment Company, Inc. a commission equal to 10% of the gross proceeds from the Bridge Financing, plus reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. The Bridge Loans and the Bridge Rights were allocated for accounting purposes based on the relative fair values of the Bridge Loans without the Bridge Rights and the Bridge Rights themselves at the time of issuance. The actual value of the Bridge Loans and the Bridge Rights was computed at \$1,600,000 each for a total value of \$3,200,000. Since they were each of equal value, the \$1,600,000 of proceeds was allocated 50% to the Bridge Loans and 50% to the Bridge Rights (*i.e.*, \$800,000 each). The Bridge Rights of \$800,000 were accounted for as paid-in capital.

The discount for the commission (\$160,000) and the Bridge Rights (\$800,000) were amortized into interest expense over the life of the loans. In July 2006 with the repayment of the Bridge Loans, the remaining unamortized balance of the discount for commission and Bridge Rights was recognized as interest expense in the Condensed Statements of Operations. For the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008, the Company recorded \$960,000 in interest expense related to these discounts.

On February 8, 2008, the Company acquired an approximately 120,000 square foot manufacturing and office facility in Thornton, Colorado, for approximately \$5.5 million. The purchase was financed by a promissory note, deed of trust and construction loan agreement with the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (CHFA), which provide the Company borrowing availability of up to \$7.5 million for the building and building improvements. The Company paid approximately \$1.3 million in cash and was advanced approximately \$4.2 million from CHFA to fund the initial acquisition of the property. The construction loan terms require payments of interest only at 6.6% on the outstanding balance until January 1, 2009, at which time the construction loan will be refinanced by a permanent loan. The permanent loan will have an interest rate of 6.6% and the principal will be amortized over a period of approximately 19 years and 1 month consistent with a maturity date 20 years after the incurrence of the construction loan on February 8, 2008. The terms of the permanent loan are specified in a CHFA Construction and Permanent Loan Commitment dated January 16, 2008. We expect to complete building improvements in 2008 and 2009 of approximately \$11 to 12 million, of which \$3.3 million will be funded through advances on the construction loan with CHFA. Additional infrastructure costs related to build out of additional two structures, electrical upgrade and other utilities have increased our budget for our building improvements since originally projected early this year. If we prepay the construction loan, or if we prepay the permanent loan during the first seven years of the permanent loan, we will be subject to a yield maintenance prepayment penalty. Further, pursuant to certain negative covenants contained in the deed of trust associated with the construction loan, until the construction loan is repaid and all of our secured obligations performed in full, we may not, among other things, without CHFA s prior written consent (which by the terms of the deed of trust is not subject to a reasonableness requirement): create or incur additional indebtedness (other than obligations created or incurred in the ordinary course of business); merge or consolidate with any other entity; or make loans or advances to our officers, shareholders, directors or employees. Documentation relating to the permanent loan may contain negative covenants similar or identical to those associated with the construction loan.

The outstanding balance of the construction loan was \$5,973,369 as of September 30, 2008. We anticipate that the entire \$7.5 million of borrowing availability will be funded by CHFA during the fourth quarter 2008.

NOTE 7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is actively engaged in purchasing manufacturing equipment internationally and is exposed to foreign currency risk. In July 2008, the Company entered into forward contracts designed to hedge scheduled contractual payments to equipment suppliers which are denominated in euros. The total notional value of the forward contracts was 6.4 million with various contract settlement dates beginning September 15, 2008 through July 31, 2009. The Company elected not to use hedge accounting under SFAS 133 and accordingly, the unrealized losses on each forward contract were determined at the balance sheet date based upon current market rates and are reported as Unrealized losses on forward contracts in the Statement of Operations. Upon settlement of the forward contracts, realized gains or losses are reported in the Statement of Operations as Realized gains or losses on forward contracts. As of September 30, 2008, the unrealized loss on these forward contracts was \$722,715 and the realized loss was \$257,760. Although the hedging activity is designed to fix the dollar amount to be expended, the asset purchased is recorded at the spot rate in effect as of the date of the payment to the supplier. The difference between the spot rate and the forward rate has been reported as a loss on forward contract. The forward contract was 100% effective in fixing the amount to be paid to the supplier in dollar terms as of the date the forward contract was entered into. In connection with the forward contracts, the Company has a \$2.3 million credit facility with the bank holding the forward contracts which is reflected as restricted cash on the September 30, 2008 balance sheet. Derivative financial instruments are not used for speculative or trading purposes. See Note 2 for information about the fair value measurement of our derivative financial instruments.

NOTE 8. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

The Company s authorized capital stock consists of 75,000,000 shares of common stock, \$0.0001 par value, and 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value. In November 2005, the Company issued 972,000 shares of common stock at a price of \$0.04 per share. The Company has recorded for financial statement purposes the 972,000 shares at a fair value of \$1.00 per share. The Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity reflect compensation expense of \$933,120 related to the recording of this stock transaction. In January 2006, in consideration of certain asset transfers, licenses and service agreements, the Company issued 1,028,000 shares of common stock to ITN Energy Systems, Inc.

Preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value per share, may be issued in classes or series. Designations, powers, preferences, rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions are determined by the Company s Board of Directors.

Initial Public Offering: On July 10, 2006, the SEC declared effective the Company s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Reg. No. 333-131216), and the Company completed its IPO of 3,000,000 units on July 14, 2006. Each unit consisted of one share of common stock, one redeemable Class A warrant and two non-redeemable Class B warrants. The managing underwriter of the IPO was Paulson Investment Company, Inc. The IPO price was \$5.50 per unit. The gross proceeds of the offering were \$16,500,000. Ascent s net proceeds from the offering, after deducting the underwriter s discount of \$1,097,250 and other fees and expenses, aggregated approximately \$14,000,000.

The common stock and Class A and Class B warrants traded only as a unit through August 9, 2006, after which the common stock, the Class A warrants and the Class B warrants began trading separately.

Class A warrants. On May 24, 2007, the Company publicly announced that it intended to redeem its outstanding Class A warrants. The Class A warrants became eligible for redemption by the Company at \$0.25 per warrant on April 16, 2007, when the last reported sale price of the Company s common stock had equaled or exceeded \$9.35 for five consecutive trading days. There were 3,290,894 Class A warrants issued in connection with the Company s initial public offering, including the warrants issued to the Bridge Noteholders. The Class A warrants were exercisable at a price of \$6.60 per share.

The exercise period ended June 22, 2007. During the exercise period, 3,098,382 Class A warrants (94.1% of the total outstanding) were exercised for an equal number of shares of common stock, and the Company received \$20,449,321 in proceeds from the warrant exercises. At the end of the exercise period, 192,512 Class A warrants remained outstanding. The Company has set aside funds with its warrant transfer agent to redeem the outstanding warrants for \$0.25 per warrant, or a total cost of \$48,128. As of September 30, 2008, 9,090 Class A warrants remain unredeemed.

Class B warrants. The Class B warrants included in the units became exercisable on August 10, 2006. The exercise price of a Class B public warrant is \$11.00. The Class B warrants expire on July 10, 2011. The Company does not have the right to redeem the Class B warrants. During the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and the year ended December 31, 2007, 98,800 and 11,000 Class B warrants were exercised resulting in proceeds to the Company of approximately \$1,086,800 and \$121,000, respectively. As of September 30, 2008, 10,502,583 Class B warrants were outstanding.

IPO warrants. Warrants to purchase 300,000 units at \$6.60 were issued to underwriters of the Company s initial public offering in July 2006 (representative s warrants). A unit consists of one share of common stock, one Class A redeemable warrant and two Class B non-redeemable warrants. The warrants expire on July 10, 2011. Upon exercise of the representative s warrants, holders will be forced to choose whether to exercise the underlying Class A warrants or hold them for redemption. As noted above, on June 25, 2007, any Class A warrants then outstanding expired and became redeemable.

Representative s warrants to purchase 150,000 units have been exercised as of December 31, 2007, as have the 150,000 underlying Class A warrants resulting in an issuance of 300,000 shares of common stock and 300,000 Class B warrants for total proceeds to the Company of \$1.98 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2008 an additional 37,500 units have been exercised, as have the 37,500 underlying Class A warrants resulting in an issuance of 75,000 shares of common stock and 75,000 Class B warrants for total proceeds to the Company of \$495,000. To the extent that holders of representative s warrants are entitled to receive Class A warrants upon exercise of the representative s warrants, those warrants will be immediately subject to call for redemption at \$0.25 per warrant. The holders will then have to decide whether to exercise their Class A warrants or hold them for redemption. As of September 30, 2008, 112,500 representative s warrants remained unexercised.

Private Placement of Securities: The Company completed a private placement of securities with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (Hydro) in March 2007. Hydro is a subsidiary of Norsk Hydro ASA. Hydro purchased 1,600,000 shares of the Company s common stock (representing 23% of the Company s outstanding common stock post transaction) for an aggregate purchase price of \$9,236,000. The Company recorded \$75,807 of costs associated with the private placement as a reduction to Additional paid in capital on the Company s Condensed Balance Sheets. In connection with the private placement, Hydro was granted options to purchase additional shares and warrants.

In August 2007, Hydro acquired an additional 934,462 shares of the Company s common stock and 1,965,690 Class B warrants through the exercise of an option previously granted to Hydro and approved by Ascent s stockholders in June 2007. Gross proceeds to the Company were \$10.48 million, and reflected per share and per warrant purchase prices equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise. After acquiring these additional shares, Hydro again held 23% of the total outstanding common shares, after its holdings were diluted as the result of the redemption of Class A warrants and 23% of total outstanding Class B warrants. Pursuant to a second option that was approved by Ascent s stockholders in June 2007, beginning December 13, 2007, Hydro was entitled to purchase additional shares and Class B warrants up to a maximum of 35% of each class of security.

In March 2008, Hydro acquired an additional 2,341,897 shares of the Company s common stock and 1,689,905 Class B warrants through the exercise of the second option previously granted to Hydro and approved by Ascent s stockholders in June 2007, resulting in Hydro ownership of approximately 35% of each class of security. Gross proceeds to the Company were \$28.4 million, and reflected per share and per warrant purchase prices were equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise. As a result of the Company s Secondary Public Offering in May 2008, Hydro s holdings were diluted to approximately 27%.

On October 8, 2008, Hydro acquired an additional 2,421,801 shares of the Company's common stock. The purchase resulted in a return to Hydro's ownership of approximately 35% of the Company's common stock. Gross proceeds to the company from the follow on investment were approximately \$15 million, and reflect per share purchase prices equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise. Until June 15, 2009, the second option entitles Hydro to purchase from the Company additional restricted shares of common stock and Class B warrants to maintain ownership of up to 35% of issued and outstanding common stock and Class B warrants.

Other Proceeds: During the three months ended March 31, 2008, the Company received proceeds from a greater than 10% shareholder equal to the profits realized on the sale of the Company s stock that was purchased and sold within a six month or less time frame. Under Section 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act, the profit realized from this

transaction by the greater than 10% shareholder must be disgorged to the Company under certain circumstances. The Company has recorded the proceeds received on this transaction of \$148,109 as Additional paid in capital and is reflected on the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity.

Secondary Public Offering: On May 15, 2008, the SEC declared effective the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-149740), and the Company completed its Secondary Public Offering of 4,370,000 shares of common stock, which included 570,000 shares issued upon the underwriter s exercise of their overallotment in full. The offering price of \$14.00 per share resulted in proceeds of \$61,180,000. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses of approximately \$4,361,000, net proceeds to the Company were approximately \$56,819,000. JP Morgan was the managing underwriter of the Secondary Public Offering.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had 18,495,448 shares of common stock and no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

NOTE 9. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Option Plan: The Company s 2005 Stock Option Plan, as amended (Stock Option Plan) provides for the grant of incentive or non-statutory stock options to the Company s employees, directors and consultants. The Board of Directors adopted and the stockholders approved an increase in the total shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan from 1,000,000 to 1,500,000 on July 1, 2008.

Restricted Stock Plan: The Board of Directors adopted the Company s 2008 Restricted Stock Plan with stockholder approval on July 1, 2008. The Restricted Stock Plan reserves up to 750,000 shares of our common stock for restricted stock awards and restricted stock units to eligible employees, directors and consultants of the Company.

The Stock Option Plan and the Restricted Stock Plan are administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, which determines the terms of the options and shares, including the exercise price, expiration date, vesting schedule and number of shares. The term of any incentive stock option granted under the Stock Option Plan may not exceed ten years, or five years for options granted to an optionee owning more than 10% of the Company s voting stock. The exercise price of an incentive stock option granted under the Option Plan must be equal to or greater than the fair market value of the shares of the Company s common stock on the date the option is granted. An incentive stock option granted to an optionee owning more than 10% of the Company s voting stock must have an exercise price equal to or greater than 110% of the fair market value of the Company s common stock on the date the option is granted. The exercise price of a non-statutory option granted under the Option Plan must be equal to or greater than 85% of the fair market value of the shares of the Company s common stock on the date the option is granted.

Stock Based Compensation: The Company accounts for share-based payments under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment*, (SFAS 123(R)) which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees, officers, directors and consultants, including employee stock options based on estimated fair values. Stock based compensation expense recognized in the Condensed Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest and it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.

The weighted average estimated fair value of employee stock options granted for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$4.86 and \$4.49 per share respectively. Fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes Model with the following weighted average assumptions:

	For the Thr	ee
	Months	
	Ended Septemb	oer 30,
	2008	2007
Expected volatility	103.40%	90.20%
Risk free interest rate	3 13%	4 62%

Expected dividends		
Expected life (in years)	5.08	6.10

For the three months ended September 30, 2008, the Company based its estimate of expected volatility, forfeiture rate and expected life on historical data of the Company s common stock price and activity to date of the Company s Stock Option Plan. Because of limited historical information of a newly publicly traded Company, for the three months ended September 30, 2007, we based our estimate of expected volatility on disclosures made by peers, expected term was calculated using the simplified method permitted by Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB)110 and forfeitures were estimated based on historical employee retention experience among staff of similar position to those granted options in our plan. Stock based compensation expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,			For the Nine N Septem	
	2008		2007	2008	2007
Officers, directors & employees	\$ 375,164	\$	173,870	\$ 1,076,619	\$ 291,779
Outside providers	224,198		925,976	(69,726)	1,341,582
•	\$ 599 362	\$	1 099 846	\$ 1 006 893	\$ 1 633 361

Table of Contents

Stock based compensation expense is calculated on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods of the related options. In future periods, the compensation expense that the Company records under SFAS 123(R) may differ significantly from what the Company recorded in the current period, as the Company builds company-specific performance history.

As of September 30, 2008, total unrecognized compensation cost from unvested stock options was approximately \$1,407,000 (\$1,305,000 to officers, directors and employees, and \$102,000 to outside providers), which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.4 years. As of September 30, 2008, there were options outstanding to purchase 672,833 shares of common stock and approximately 517,000 shares remained available for future grants under the Option Plan.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company awarded 64,846 shares of restricted stock of which 40,000 were under an employment agreement and 24,846 were awarded to the Board of directors. Additionally 5,000 restricted stock units were granted during the period. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company recorded compensation expense related to restricted stock awards of \$258,318 and \$277,333, respectively. Total estimated unrecognized compensation cost from restricted stock grants as of September 30, 2008 was approximately \$573,000 which is expected to be recognized over a period of approximately 1.9 years.

NOTE 10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party expenses incurred with ITN for facility sublease costs and administrative support included in General and administrative expenses and Research and development expenses in the Condensed Statements of Operations for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were \$378,597 and \$261,800, respectively, and during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were \$923,990 and \$693,146, respectively. Related party expenses incurred with ITN for research and development and manufacturing activity included in Research and development expense for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were \$461,598 and \$278,904, respectively, and during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were \$1,050,332 and \$684,496, respectively. Related party payables to ITN were \$335,228 as of September 30, 2008 and \$264,797 as of December 31, 2007. Accrued expenses include \$11,000 payable to officers for travel and other expenses.

Property and Equipment and Deposits on manufacturing equipment as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 include \$1,609,261 and \$1,265,232, respectively, of costs incurred by ITN for construction of the Company s manufacturing and research and development equipment.

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS

Sublease Agreement: On November 1, 2005, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with ITN, a greater than five percent stockholder of the Company, for office space in Littleton, Colorado. In 2005 and 2006, two Board members of Ascent were partial owners of the company that leased this office space to ITN. As of January 1, 2007, they no longer have an investment in the building the Company is subleasing from ITN. Future minimum payments due under the sublease as of December 31 are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2008	\$ 227,896
2009	\$ 227,896
2010	\$ 113,948

The Company is also responsible for payment of pass-through expenses such as property taxes, insurance, water and utilities. Rent expense for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$74,082 and \$75,403, respectively, and during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$221,794 and \$215,530, respectively.

Patent License Agreements: In 2006, the Company entered into two non-exclusive patent license agreements. In consideration for the right to license certain inventions, the Company is required to pay annual royalty payments based on net sales of products manufactured using the licensed technology. If there are no net sales of products manufactured using the licensed technology, then a minimum royalty payment is required. The Company has made payments for the annual minimum royalties due associated with these patent license agreements.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited financial statements and the notes to those financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-Q. This discussion and analysis contains statements of a forward-looking nature relating to future events or our future financial performance. As a result of many factors, our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a development stage company formed to commercialize flexible PV modules using proprietary technology. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, we generated approximately \$422,000 and \$1,071,000, respectively, in revenues, none of which came from our planned principal operations to commercialize flexible PV modules. As of September 30, 2008, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately \$21.0 million. Under our current business plan, we expect losses to continue through at least 2009 at which point we plan to commence production on our initial 30 MW manufacturing line that is currently in development. To date, we have financed our operations primarily through public and private equity financings including our recent secondary public offering of 4,370,000 shares of common stock with net proceeds of approximately \$56,819,000 which we completed in May 2008 and the October 2008 investment of approximately \$15 million by our largest shareholder Norsk Hydro. The proceeds from these stock sales are primarily being utilized to fund the equipment purchases for our 30 MW production facility in Thornton, Colorado.

Our path to commercialization is defined by a highly disciplined, staged progression based upon the achievement of key milestones. Our current focus is on development of strategic relationships, product development and certification, performance optimization of our 1.5 MW manufacturing tools and processes, staffing, and acceleration of our production capacity beyond the initial 30 MW capacity.

We completed construction of a 1.5 MW production line on schedule in December 2007 after consistently achieving PV cell conversion efficiencies of approximately 10% to 12%, and PV module conversion efficiencies of approximately 6% to 8%, and as high as 9.6%, in a pre-production prototyping and test facility that we have operated since the fourth quarter of 2006. Conversion efficiency is the percentage of energy from absorbed light that a device is able to convert into electrical energy. Our 2008 production objective is to successfully transition the manufacturing processes yielding these demonstrated performance levels to our 1.5 MW production line and commence certification of our planned products from independent testing laboratories such as Underwriters Laboratory (UL) in the U.S. and Technischer Überwachungs-Verein (TÜV) in Europe. Product certifications are necessary for the deployment of our planned products for building integrated photovoltaic (BIPV) applications and we expect to achieve these certifications by the third quarter of 2009. Our other target market is electronic integrated photovoltaic (EIPV) for consumer electronics and portable power applications which do not require the same level of product certification.

In March 2008, we demonstrated initial operating capability (IOC) of our 1.5 MW production line by initiating production trials as an end-to-end integrated process. Early IOC production trials resulted in average thin-film device efficiencies of 9.5% and small area monolithically integrated module efficiencies of over 7%. Recent and ongoing production optimization trials have resulted in thin-film device efficiencies in the 8.0% to 11.5% range and corresponding module efficiencies in the 8.0% to 9.0% range. We continue to operate at low rate initial production levels as we systematically perform production trials focused on improving process repeatability, efficiency and yield to achieve the desired initial production metrics necessary to produce module efficiencies of 7% to 8%. Our current focus is to demonstrate consistent run-to-run performance by

achieving initial module efficiencies of 7% to 8% in low rate initial production. Recently we have demonstrated cell efficiencies in the range of 9.0% to 11.5% with average cell efficiency of 9.5%. Performing these ongoing production trials in the short term and focusing on process optimization before commencing single shift, full-rate production on the 1.5 MW line, we believe will benefit our long-term production performance, expansion plans, and UL and TÜV product certification which we plan to begin in the fourth quarter of 2008. Even as we attain full production, we expect that process optimization will be an ongoing effort as we continuously strive for improvements in production yield, production throughput, and product efficiency that have a direct bearing on our cost competitiveness in the marketplace.

During the second quarter of 2008, we commenced product development with customers and internal product testing. The initial product prototypes and samples are being provided to EIPV and BIPV customers such as ICP Solar, Icopal, Hydro and Texsa, among others. Our product development plans envision entering the market in 2009 initially with EIPV products while simultaneously developing BIPV product applications with BIPV customers. These developments should enable product certification by the third quarter of 2009 at which point we plan to begin limited commercial deployment of BIPV system level projects with customers using product from the 1.5 MW production line.

Table of Contents

Production tooling and equipment orders for the tools to be used for the deposition of the top and bottom contact layers, semiconductor CIGS and buffer layer as well as the laser scribing, encapsulation and testing equipment for the initial 30 MW production capacity have been placed. This manufacturing equipment is scheduled to be in place by the third quarter of 2009 allowing for production to begin in 2010. The Company s new manufacturing facility in Thornton, Colorado is in the final stages of completion and should be ready to accommodate installation of the equipment in early 2009.

Commercialization and Manufacturing Expansion Plan

We intend to be the first company to manufacture large, PV modules in commercial quantities that use CIGS on a flexible, plastic substrate. Our manufacturing expansion plan entails the design, installation, qualification, testing and operation of additional production tools to increase our rated production capacity. We intend to incrementally expand our aggregate production capacity to 110 MW by attaining the following milestones within the time frames indicated below:

- Second and third quarter of 2008: complete order placement of the major production tools for the first 30 MW of incremental rated capacity.
- Fourth quarter of 2008: begin internal testing and qualification of products.
- Third quarter of 2009: complete certification (UL and TÜV) of products from 1.5 MW production line.
- Third quarter of 2009: begin procuring production tools for the second 30 MW of incremental rated capacity.
- Fourth quarter of 2009: begin qualification of production tools for the first 30 MW and in 2010 begin production and ramp up to aggregate rated capacity.
- Third quarter of 2010: begin procuring production tools for the final 50 MW of incremental rated capacity.
- Fourth quarter of 2010: complete qualification of production tools for the second 30 MW of incremental rated capacity and commence production ramp up to 60 MW of aggregate rated capacity.
- Fourth quarter of 2011: complete qualification of production tools for the final 50 MW of incremental rated capacity and commence production ramp up 110 MW of aggregate rated capacity.

We therefore expect to have approximately 110 MW of rated production capacity in place by the end of 2011. Rated production capacity refers to our expected level of annual production upon optimization of our production process and is based on assumed production yields and module efficiencies. The actual production levels that we are able to realize at any point during our planned expansion will depend on a variety of factors, including our ability to optimize our production process to achieve targeted production yields and module efficiencies.

Although we currently plan to expand our production capacity in accordance with the timeline above, the actual timing and amount of production capacity that we install may significantly deviate from the above plan due to market conditions, availability of financing, timeliness of delivery of production tools, product performance and other factors described in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. See Significant Trends, Uncertainties and Challenges below. We also recognize the importance of developing strategies and plans that may allow for the timely acceleration of our production beyond the current plan in order to meet market demand and the challenges from competitors who are presently expanding their operations.

Although we do not expect that minor delays in product certifications would significantly affect our ability to continue developing product applications with our customers, delays that extend significantly beyond mid-2009 likely would impact our ability to develop demand for our PV modules, and would affect our planned sales and results of operations in 2010, when we expect to have commenced production using our planned production tools for approximately 30 MW of rated capacity.

Using our 1.5 MW pilot production line as a model, we have consummated the fixed price delivery contracts for the majority of the production tools for the 30 MW line. The equipment supplier schedules in the supply agreements provide for the installation of the majority of the production tools by the end of the third quarter of 2009. We plan to commence production ramp up to 30 MW of rated capacity by the end of the first quarter 2010. In order to qualify approximately 30 MW of rated capacity by the end of 2009, we intend to purchase and install production tools that will process one-third meter

Table of Contents

wide plastic rolls similar to those used in our existing 1.5 MW production line. Significant delays in achieving desired production yields, module efficiencies or other performance metrics on the 1.5 MW production line and/or delays in the delivery, installation and qualification of the 30 MW production tools may impact our real and projected product sales in 2010.

We expect that the production tools used for the additional approximately 80 MW of rated capacity and for future capacity expansions may be engineered to process larger one meter wide rolls. We have initiated engineering and development of the one meter wide production tools to support our planned expansion to 110 MW of rated capacity. Successfully transitioning to one meter wide rolls should significantly increase our throughput, thereby reducing the number of manufacturing tools and, hence, the amount of capital expenditures required for equipment and facilities. Generally speaking, we believe that all other process variables, such as speed, thickness and composition, should remain unchanged. Based upon discussions with our equipment suppliers, we have identified deposition of the CIGS layer in the one meter wide format as the most challenging aspect of transitioning to one meter wide rolls; consequently, we have initiated the development of one meter wide prototype CIGS and Molybdenum production tools to enable us to begin evaluating and testing one meter wide area deposition sources and process control systems. The one meter CIGS prototype production tool is scheduled for installation in the first quarter of 2009 and the one meter Molybdenum production tool is scheduled for delivery in the second quarter of 2009. We plan to conduct six to nine months of testing and evaluation prior to committing the capital in 2009 to procure the one meter format production tools to support further expansion to approximately 110 MW of rated capacity. Our planned expansion to approximately 110 MW of rated capacity will require additional capital which we may not be able to obtain on favorable terms, if at all or without dilution to our stockholders.

Capital Equipment Expenditures and Manufacturing Costs

Since our formation in October 2005, most of our cash outlays have gone toward the investment in capital equipment necessary to develop our manufacturing capabilities for producing the commercial products we envision. We expect this trend to continue into the foreseeable future as we expand to approximately 110 MW of rated capacity by the end of 2011. We will require additional capital and additional facilities to achieve our manufacturing expansion plans. If we are unable to secure the necessary capital or to manage the disbursement of capital taking into consideration any unforeseen factors, such as cost increases from our equipment suppliers and the potential continued devaluation of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies, our ability to expand our manufacturing capacity as planned, as well as our financial performance and results of operations, may be adversely affected.

We currently expect the capital expenditures in 2008 and 2009 needed to support the first 30 MW of rated capacity to total approximately \$90 million to \$95 million for property, plant and equipment, an increase of approximately \$10 million from our previous estimates primarily due to higher costs for equipment infrastructure, as well as higher estimated costs for certain equipment. We also expect capital expenditures of approximately \$8 million for installation, qualification and other associated pre-operating expenses. In order to install the next 80 MW of rated capacity, we expect that we will require another approximately \$170 million to \$180 million for property, plant and equipment and approximately \$15 million for installation, qualification and other associated pre-operating expenses. In addition, we have budgeted approximately \$7 million in 2008 and 2009 for the procurement and installation of the one meter wide manufacturing development tools, sources, and sensor control systems.

Our major equipment suppliers are located in Japan, the United Kingdom and Germany. To manage the uncertainties related to the procurement of capital equipment, we have continued to work closely with our equipment suppliers to complete the engineering of our new tools and refine the estimates of our planned capital outlays. The production tool costs are subject to change until we place firm procurement orders with our suppliers. To manage the fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, we have implemented forward pricing contracts for certain agreements denominated in foreign currencies.

Significant Trends, Uncertainties and Challenges

We believe that the significant trends, uncertainties and challenges that directly or indirectly affect our financial performance and results of operations are:

- Our ability to achieve desired production yields, module efficiencies and other performance targets, and to obtain necessary or desired certifications for our PV modules;
- Our ability to expand production in accordance with our plans set forth above under Commercialization and Manufacturing Expansion Plan to add approximately 30 MW of rated capacity by the end of 2009,

Table of Contents

another approximately 30 MW of rated capacity by the end of 2010 and another approximately 50 MW of rated capacity by the end of 2011, and to achieve certifications of our planned PV modules;

- Our ability to achieve projected operational performance and cost metrics;
- Our ability to consummate strategic relationships with key partners, including original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
 customers, system integrators, and distributors who deal directly with end-users in the BIPV, EIPV, portable power, and
 commodity solar panel markets;
- The effect that currency fluctuations may have on our capital equipment purchases, manufacturing costs and the price of our planned PV modules; and
- Our ability to manage the planned expansion of our manufacturing facilities, operations and personnel

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Basis of Presentation: The Company s activities to date have substantially consisted of raising capital, research and development, and the development of a 1.5 MW production plant and additional 30 MW expansion. Revenues to date have been generated from the Company s governmental R&D contracts and have not been significant. The Company s planned principal operations to commercialize flexible PV modules has not yet commenced. Accordingly, the Company is considered to be in the development stage, as defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7 (SFAS No. 7), Accounting and Reporting by Development Stage Enterprises.

The accompanying unaudited financial statements, consisting of the Condensed Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2008, the Condensed Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 and the Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, these condensed financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes typically found in the audited financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

The Condensed Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007 and the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity for the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through December 31, 2007 have been derived from the audited financial statements as of that date but do not include all of the information and footnotes included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. For further information, refer to the financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2008.

Unaudited Information: The accompanying interim financial information as of September 30, 2008 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 was taken from the Company s books and records without audit. However, in the opinion of management, such information includes all adjustments (consisting only of results of normal recurring accruals) that are necessary to properly reflect the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the period from inception (October 18, 2005) through September 30, 2008 so that the financial statements are not misleading.

Investments: The Company accounts for investments in accordance with SFAS 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Securities held by the Company as of September 30, 2008 are classified as available-for-sale and consisted of U.S. government securities, corporate securities, and municipal bonds. Such investments are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices with the unrealized holding gains and losses reported as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the stockholders equity section of the balance sheet. Realized gains and losses on sales of securities are computed using the specified identification cost method. The Company evaluates declines in market value for

potential impairment. If the decline results in a value below cost and is determined to be other than temporary, the investment is written down to its impaired value and a new cost basis is established. A summary of available-for-sale securities as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

	An	nortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	τ	Gross Inrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
U.S. government securities	\$	29,545,910	\$	\$	(46,179) \$	29,499,731
Corporate securities		8,703,089			(126,105)	8,576,984
Municipal bonds		5,540,628			(628)	5,540,000
Total	\$	43,789,627	\$	\$	(172,912) \$	43,616,715

Contractual maturities of our available-for-sale investments as of September 30, 2008 were as follows:

	Aı	nortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	U	Gross Inrealized Losses	E	Estimated Fair Value
One year or less	\$	39,200,934	\$	\$	(168,439)	\$	39,032,495
One year to two years		4,588,693			(4,473)		4,584,220
Total	\$	43,789,627	\$	\$	(172,912)	\$	43,616,715

We typically invest in highly-rated securities with low probabilities of default. Our investment policy specifies minimum investment grade criteria, types of acceptable investments, concentration limitations and duration.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid debt securities purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances which may exceed federally insured limits. The Company does not believe that this results in any significant credit risk.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue to date is from government research and development contracts under terms that are cost plus fee or firm fixed price. Revenue from cost plus fee contracts is recognized as costs are incurred on the basis of direct costs plus allowable indirect costs and an allocable portion of the firm fixed fee. Revenue from firm fixed price contracts is recognized under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, with costs and estimated profits included in contract revenue as work is performed. If actual and estimated costs to complete a contract indicate a loss, provision is made currently for the loss anticipated on the contract.

Patents: At such time as the Company is awarded patents, patent costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the legal life, or over their estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had \$124,222 of net patent costs of which \$30,696 represent costs net of amortization incurred for an awarded patent, and the remaining \$93,526 represents costs incurred for patents filed for. Amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was \$5,116 and \$0, respectively.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at the original cost to the Company. Assets are being depreciated over estimated useful lives of one to ten years using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remainder of the lease term or the life of the improvements. Upon retirement or disposal, the cost of the asset disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Risks and Uncertainties: The Company s operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including those associated with: the ability to meet obligations; continuing losses; fluctuation in operating results; funding expansions; strategic alliances; financing arrangement terms that may restrict operations; regulatory issues; and competition. Additionally, U.S. government contracts may be terminated prior to completion of full funding by the U.S. government.

Net Loss per Common Share: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, *Earnings Per Share*, provides for the calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share include no dilution and are computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential of securities that could share in the earnings of the Company, similar to fully diluted earnings per share. Common stock equivalents consisting of Class B Warrants, IPO Warrants (representative warrants), and stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2008 of approximately 11.6 million

Table of Contents

shares, have been omitted from loss per share because they are anti-dilutive. Basic and diluted loss per share was the same in each of the three and nine months periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007.

Research and Development Costs: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Incomes Taxes: In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN 48), *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes*. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Deferred income taxes are provided using the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates of the date of enactment.

As defined, FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. The Company became subject to the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company has identified its federal tax return and its Colorado tax return as major tax jurisdictions, as defined. The periods subject to examination for the Company s federal and state tax returns are tax years 2005 through 2007. The Company believes that its income tax filing positions and deductions will be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded pursuant to FIN 48. In addition, the Company did not record a cumulative effect adjustment related to the adoption of FIN 48.

Stock Based Compensation: The Company accounts for share-based payments under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment*, (SFAS 123(R)) which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees, officers, directors, and consultants, including employee stock options based on estimated fair values.

SFAS 123(R) requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service period in the Company s Statements of Operations. Stock based compensation is based on awards ultimately expected to vest and is reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, as necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

For purposes of determining estimated fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant under SFAS 123(R), the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (Black-Scholes Model). The Black-Scholes Model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company s employee stock options may have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management s opinion, the existing models may not provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company s employee stock options. Management will continue to assess the assumptions and methodologies used to calculate estimated fair value of share-based compensation. Circumstances may change and additional

data may become available over time, which result in changes to these assumptions and methodologies, which could materially impact the Company s fair value determination.

The guidance in SFAS 123(R) is relatively new, and best practices are not well established. The application of these principles may be subject to further interpretation and refinement over time. There are significant differences among option valuation models, and this may result in a lack of comparability with other companies that use different models, methods and assumptions. If factors change and the Company employs different assumptions in the application of SFAS 123(R) in future periods, or if the Company decides to use a different valuation model, the compensation expense that the Company records in the future under SFAS 123(R) may differ significantly from what it has recorded in the current period and could materially affect its loss from operations, net loss and net loss per share.

Comprehensive income (loss). Our comprehensive income (loss) consists of our net income (loss), and changes in unrealized gains or losses on investments, the impact of which has been excluded from net loss. We present our comprehensive income (loss) in the Condensed Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income and (Loss). Our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is presented as a component of equity in our Condensed Balance Sheets and consists of the cumulative amount of net unrealized

gains or losses on available-for-sale investments that we have incurred since the inception of our business.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 financial statements to conform to the 2008 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net loss.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157). In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which provides a one year deferral of the effective date of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value at least annually. Therefore, the Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 with respect to its financial assets and liabilities only. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined under SFAS 157 as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under SFAS 157 must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value which are the following:

- Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

In accordance with SFAS 157, the following table represents the Company s fair value hierarchy for its financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2008:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial Assets:				
U.S. government securities	\$ 27,946,450	\$ 25,657,377	\$	\$ 53,603,827
Money market funds	16,820,210			16,820,210
Corporate securities		20,038,884		20,038,884
Municipal bonds		5,540,000		5,540,000
	\$ 44,766,660	\$ 51,236,261	\$	\$ 96,002,921
Financial Liabilities:				
Derivative liability	\$	\$ 722,715	\$	\$ 722,715

The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 159 *The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities* (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 allows an entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement for specified financial assets and liabilities on a contract-by-contract basis. The Company did not elect to adopt the fair value option under this Statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (SFAS 160), which will change the accounting and

Table of Contents

reporting for minority interests, which will be re-characterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation method will significantly change the accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS 160 is effective as of the beginning of an entity s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 160 on its financial position and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 (SFAS 161), which expands the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 161 specifically requires entities to provide enhanced disclosures addressing the following: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations; and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 161 on its financial position, results of operations and disclosures.

Results of Operations

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 financial information to conform to the 2008 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net loss and are primarily related to reclassifying costs between Research and development costs and General and administrative expenses in the Condensed Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007. Our activities to date have substantially consisted of raising capital, business and product development, research and development and the development of our 1.5 MW production line and additional 30 MW expansion.

Contract Revenues. Our Contract revenues were \$422,487 and \$324,064 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Contract revenues were \$1,071,500 and \$739,732 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Contract revenues are earned on our governmental R&D contracts novated January 1, 2007 from ITN and new government R&D contracts awarded to us in 2007 and 2008.

Related Party Revenues. There were no related party revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007.

Research and Development. R&D costs include costs related to the performance on our governmental contracts and the costs incurred for pre-production activities on our 1.5 MW pilot line and our planned 30 MW line. R&D costs were \$2,609,926 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$1,100,328 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$1,509,598. Although governmental R&D expenditures increased slightly, the increase primarily relates to pre-production activities. Within the pre-production activities, the increase is comprised of materials and equipment related costs of approximately \$632,000, personnel related costs of approximately \$261,000, facility related costs of approximately \$210,000 and depreciation and amortization of approximately \$358,000. R&D costs were \$6,522,587 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$2,749,727 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$3,772,860. The pre-production cost increases are primarily

comprised of materials and equipment related costs of approximately \$1,632,000, personnel related costs of approximately \$730,000, facility related costs of approximately \$353,000 and depreciation and amortization of approximately \$946,000.

General and Administrative. General and administrative (G&A) expenses were \$2,284,839 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$1,807,773 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$477,066. This increase is due to costs associated with increased headcount of approximately \$155,000, approximately \$412,000 for severance related costs, and increases in supplies and mailing trade show and facilities costs of approximately \$123,000. These increases were partially offset by reductions in stock compensation expense of approximately \$325,000. G&A was \$4,889,824 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$3,842,993 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$1,046,831. This increase is due to costs associated with increased headcount of approximately \$716,000, approximately \$412,000 for severance and related costs, an increase in public company costs of approximately \$174,000 and increased trade show, facility and supplies and mailing costs of approximately \$286,000. These increases were partially offset by reductions in stock compensation expense of approximately \$432,000.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was \$938 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$270 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$668. Interest expense was \$109,893 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$406 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$109,487. The increase in Interest expense for both periods is related to the construction loan we entered into with the purchase of real property in

February 2008. For the three months ended September 30, 2008, we capitalized \$89,892 of interest costs related to the construction loan into our property and equipment.

Interest Income. Interest income was \$687,801 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$518,909 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$168,892. Interest income was \$1,587,404 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$925,460 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, an increase of \$661,944. Interest income represents interest on cash and short term investments. The increases in Interest income for both periods is due to higher balances of cash and short term investments over the previous periods as a result of completed financings.

Realized Loss on Forward Contract and Unrealized Losses on Forward Contracts. Realized and unrealized losses on forward contracts relate to hedging activities entered into during the three months ended September 30, 2008. As of September 30, 2008, the unrealized loss on forward contracts was \$722,715 and the realized loss was \$257,760. Although the hedging activity is designed to fix the dollar amount to be expended, the asset purchased is recorded at the spot rate in effect as of the date of the payment to the supplier. The difference between the spot rate and the forward rate has been reported as a loss on forward contract. The forward contract was 100% effective in fixing the amount to be paid to the supplier in dollar terms as of the date the forward contract was entered into.

Net Loss Our Net Loss was \$4,765,890 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to a Net Loss of \$2,065,398 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, an increase in Net Loss of \$2,700,492. Our Net Loss was \$9,843,875 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to a Net Loss of \$4,900,415 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, an increase in Net Loss of \$4,943,460. The increase in Net Loss can be summarized in variances in significant account activity as follows:

	to For the	ase (decrease) Net Loss Three months Ended mber 30, 2008	Increase (decrease) to Net Loss For the Nine months Ended September 30, 2008
Contract revenues	\$	98,423 \$	304,249
Related party revenue			
Research and development costs			
Manufacturing R&D		(1,364,971)	(3,335,141)
Government R&D		(144,627)	(437,719)
General and administrative expenses			
Corporate G&A		(802,232)	(1,478,966)
Non-cash stock based compensation		325,166	432,135
Interest expense		(668)	(109,487)
Interest income		168,892	661,944
Realized Loss on forward contract		(257,760)	(257,760)
Unrealized Loss on forward contracts		(722,715)	(722,715)
Increase to Net Loss	\$	(2,700,492) \$	(4,943,460)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, we completed the following financing transactions:

- On March 28, 2008, Norsk Hydro acquired an additional 2,341,897 restricted shares of our common stock and 1,689,905 Class B warrants upon exercise of one of the options granted to Norsk Hydro on March 13, 2007. The exercise of the option resulted in proceeds to us of approximately \$28.4 million, and reflected per share and per warrant purchase prices equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise. After acquiring these additional shares, Norsk Hydro held approximately 35% of each of our total outstanding common shares and Class B warrants. As a result of the Company s Secondary Public Offering in May 2008, Hydro s holdings were diluted to approximately 27%. On October 8, 2008, Hydro acquired an additional 2,421,801 shares of our common stock. The purchase resulted in a return to Hydro s ownership of approximately \$15 million, and reflect per share purchase prices equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise. Until June 15, 2009, the second option entitles Hydro to purchase from the Company additional restricted shares of common stock and Class B warrants to maintain ownership of up to 35% of issued and outstanding common stock and Class B warrants.
- On February 8, 2008, the Company acquired an approximately 120,000 square foot manufacturing and office facility in Thornton, Colorado, for approximately \$5.5 million. The purchase was financed by a promissory note, deed of trust and construction loan agreement with CHFA, which provide the Company borrowing availability of up to \$7.5 million for the building and building improvements. The Company paid approximately \$1.3 million in cash and was advanced approximately \$4.2 million from CHFA to fund the initial acquisition of the property. The construction loan terms require payments of interest only at 6.6% on the outstanding balance until January 1, 2009, at which time the construction loan will be refinanced by a permanent loan. The

permanent loan will have an interest rate of 6.6% and the principal will be amortized over a period of approximately 19 years and 1 month consistent with a maturity date 20 years after the incurrence of the construction loan on February 8, 2008. The terms of the permanent loan are specified in a CHFA Construction and Permanent Loan Commitment dated January 16, 2008. We expect to complete building improvements in 2008 and 2009 of approximately \$11 to 12 million, of which \$3.3 million will be funded through advances on the construction loan with CHFA. Additional infrastructure costs related to build out of additional two structures, electrical upgrade and other utilities have increased our budget for our building improvements since originally projected early this year. If we prepay the construction loan, or if we prepay the permanent loan during the first seven years of the permanent loan, we will be subject to a yield maintenance prepayment penalty. Further, pursuant to certain negative covenants contained in the deed of trust associated with the construction loan, until the construction loan is repaid and all of our secured obligations performed in full, we may not, among other things, without CHFA s prior written consent (which by the terms of the deed of trust is not subject to a reasonableness requirement): create or incur additional indebtedness (other than obligations created or incurred in the ordinary course of business); merge or consolidate with any other entity; or make loans or advances to our officers, shareholders, directors or employees. Documentation relating to the permanent loan may contain negative covenants similar or identical to those associated with the construction loan.

- On January 4, 2008, warrants that had been issued to the representative of the underwriters in our IPO were exercised resulting in the issuance of 75,000 shares of common stock and 75,000 Class B warrants for total proceeds to us of approximately \$495,000.
- During January and May 2008, a total of 98,800 Class B public warrants were exercised resulting in proceeds to us of approximately \$1,086,800.
- On May 15, 2008, the SEC declared effective our Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-149740), and we completed our Secondary Public Offering of 4,370,000 shares of common stock, which includes 570,000 shares issued upon the underwriter s exercise of its overallotment in full. The offering price of \$14.00 per share resulted in proceeds of \$61,180,000. After deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses of approximately \$4,361,000, net proceeds to the Company were approximately \$56,819,000. JP Morgan was the managing underwriter of our Secondary Public Offering.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, our cash used in operations was approximately \$6.1 million compared to approximately \$2.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 approximately \$25.7 million had been expended in capital to complete our 1.5 MW production line and facility modifications, initial payments on our 30 MW and one meter wide development and production tools, and acquisition of the Thornton, Colorado facility for our manufacturing expansion. Approximately \$5.9 million of our Thornton, Colorado manufacturing facility was financed through a loan with CHFA. As of September 30, 2008, we had approximately \$98.6 million in cash and investments. We currently expect the capital expenditures in 2008 and 2009 needed to support the first 30 MW of rated capacity to total approximately \$90 million to \$95 million for property, plant and equipment, an increase of approximately \$10 million from our previous estimates primarily due to higher costs for equipment infrastructure, as well as higher estimated costs for certain equipment. We also expect capital expenditures of approximately \$8 million for installation, qualification and other associated pre-operating expenses. In addition, we have budgeted approximately \$7 million in 2008 and 2009 for the procurement and installation of the one meter wide manufacturing development tools, sources, and sensor control systems. The Company has made down payments of approximately \$17.4 million for the 30 MW production and manufacturing development tools as of September 30, 2008.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the use of cash for operational expenses averaged approximately \$679,000 per month and related to pre-manufacturing activities, research and technology development, business development and general corporate expenses. We expect

these operational expenses to increase during 2008 and 2009 as we commence commercial production and increase the size of our workforce. Average monthly operational expense for the first nine months of 2008 of approximately \$679,000 is net of average monthly R&D revenues from our government contracts of approximately \$214,000 and average monthly interest income net of interest expense of approximately \$164,000. A significant component of our costs for the first nine months of 2008 related to the ongoing qualification of our 1.5 MW line and continuing corporate costs related to building the required infrastructure to support our 1.5 MW manufacturing operations and expansion plans. We anticipate that our operational expenditures will continue to increase throughout 2008 and 2009 due to the planned hiring of additional personnel to help our 1.5 MW production line reach its operating potential and in connection with our planned expansion of manufacturing capacity. As of October 31, 2008, we had 55 full-time

Table of Contents

employees of which 31 were manufacturing personnel. We plan to increase our staff during 2009, principally in manufacturing, business development and sales and marketing.

We do not expect that our sales revenue from the 1.5 MW production line will be sufficient to support our operations and cash requirements, and it is unlikely that our sales revenue will support our operating cash requirements unless we achieve actual production capacity of at least 30 MW per year. We intend to use our existing cash to build our operational infrastructure and to begin development of manufacturing capacity necessary to produce PV modules for sale into our target markets.

Off Balance Sheet Transactions

We have no off balance sheet transactions.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives, and management necessarily is required to use its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act as of September 30, 2008. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of September 30, 2008, the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Disclosure and Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

On October 8, 2008, Hydro acquired 2,421,801 shares of our common stock. The purchase resulted in a return to Hydro s ownership of approximately 35% of our common stock. Gross proceeds to the company from the follow on investment was approximately \$15 million, and reflect per share purchase prices equal to the average of the closing bids of each security, as reported by NASDAQ, for the five consecutive trading days preceding exercise.

The sales to Hydro were effected pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and/or Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

At an annual meeting of the Company s shareholders on July 1, 2008, the shareholders re-elected Dr. Amit Kumar and Joel Porter to serve until the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Einar Glomnes and Dr. Mohan Misra to serve until the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders also approved the Company s restricted stock plan and an amendment and restatement of the Company s stock option plan. Approximately 85.0% of outstanding votable shares were represented in person or by proxy at the meeting. The voting results for each matter were as follows:

Proposal #1 Election of Two Class 1 Directors

Director	For	Withheld
Dr. Amit Kumar	11,892,313	42,485
Joel Porter	11,804,662	130,136

Proposal #2 Election of Class 3 Directors

Director	For	Withheld
Einar Glomnes	11,892,543	42,255
Dr. Mohan Misra	11,894,263	40,535

Proposal #3 To approve the Company s 2008 Restricted Stock Plan for issuance of incentive restricted stock awards to employees, consultants and directors.

For	Against	Abstain	Non Votes
7,885,750	183,817	24,199	3,841,032

Proposal #4 To approve an amendment and restatement of the Company s 2005 Stock Option Plan that, among other things, increases the number of shares authorized for issuance under that plan by 500,000 shares.

For	Against	Abstain	Non Votes
7,756,980	311,524	25,262	3,841,032

PART II

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.	Description
3.1	Registrant s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
3.2	Registrant s Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our current report on Form 8-K filed April 17, 2007)
10.1	Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement (Approved by Board of Directors on April 16,2007; Adopted by Stockholders on June 15, 2007) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our June 30, 2007 Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed July 31, 2007)
10.2	Employment Agreement with Matthew Foster (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.3	Employment Agreement with Dr. Joseph Armstrong (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.4	Employment Agreement with Janet Casteel (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.5	Employment Agreement with Dr. Prem Nath (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.6	Employment Agreement with Joseph McCabe (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.7	Employment Agreement with Mohan S. Misra (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 27, 2007)
10.8	Employment Agreement with Ashutosh Misra (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 27, 2007)
10.9	Amendment to Employment Agreement with Prem Nath (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2008)
10.10	Amendment to Employment Agreement with Matthew Foster (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 14, 2007)
10.11	Securities Purchase Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)(CTR)
10.12	Invention and Trade Secret Assignment Agreement and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)(CTR)
10.13	Patent Application Assignment Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)

10.14

License Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)(CTR)

31

Table of Contents

Exhibit No. 10.15	Description Sublease Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.16	Service Center Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.17	Manufacturing Line Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.18	Amendment No. 1 to Manufacturing Line Agreement between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7A to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.19	Administrative Services Agreement by and between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.20	Amendment No. 1 to Administrative Services Agreement between the Registrant and ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8A to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.21	Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Appendix to Definitive Proxy Statement filed April 27, 2007)
10.22	Bridge Unit Purchase and Investor Subscription agreement with forms of promissory note and bridge right (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.23	Amendment No. 1 to Bridge Unit Purchase and Investor Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.24	Amendment to Annex B to Bridge to Bridge Unit Purchase and Investor Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13A to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.25	Non-Exclusive Patent License Agreement with Midwest Research Institute (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)(CTR)
10.26	Letter Agreement with the University of Delaware (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed January 23, 2006 (Reg. No. 333-131216), as amended)
10.27	License Agreement between UD Technology Corporation and Ascent Solar Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 29, 2007)(CTR)
10.28	Novation Agreement with ITN Energy Systems, Inc. and the United States Government (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.29	Amendment to Service Center Agreement with ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.30	Amendment to Sublease Agreement with ITN Energy Systems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.31	Securities Purchase Agreement with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 13, 2007)

Table of Contents

E-bibit N	Description
Exhibit No. 10.32	Description Stockholders Agreement with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 13, 2007)
10.33	Registration Rights Agreement with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 13, 2007)
10.34	Voting Agreement with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 13, 2007)
10.35	Consulting Agreement with Ashutosh Misra (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 30, 2007)
10.36	Contract to Buy and Sell Real Estate and Closing Statement with JN Properties (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 14, 2008)
10.37	Construction Loan Agreement with Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 14, 2008)
10.38	Promissory Note with Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 14, 2008)
10.39	Construction and Permanent Loan Commitment with Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 14, 2008)
10.40	Norsk Hydro Cooperation Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 19, 2007)
10.41	Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreement with Norsk Hydro Produksjon AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 14, 2008)
10.42	Employment Agreement with Gary Gatchell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008)
10.43	Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Gary Gatchell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed April 29, 2008)
10.44	Amendment to Employment Agreement with Mohan Misra (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 44 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2008)
10.45	Second Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed July 30, 2008 (Reg. No. 333-152642))
10.46	2008 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed July 30, 2008 (Reg. No. 333-152643))
10.47	Amended 2008 Restricted Stock Plan and Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement and Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement *
10.48	Executive Employment Agreement with Bruce I. Berkoff *
10.49	Separation Agreement and General Release with Matthew Foster *
10.50	Amendment No. 1 to Separation Agreement and General Release with Matthew Foster *
10.51	Consultant Agreement with Matthew Foster *

31.1	Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of $2002*$
31.2	Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
32.1	Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
32.2	Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

^{*} Filed herewith

(CTR) Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 10th day of November, 2008.

ASCENT SOLAR TECHNOLOGIES

By:

/s/ GARY GATCHELL
Gary Gatchell
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Authorized Signatory)

34